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In 1882, a small group of America’s first women alumnae met to form the Association of Collegiate Alumnae (ACA), with the purpose of expanding women’s opportunities in higher education and the workplace.  Over the next decades, this organization grew to national prominence, with the American Association of University Women coming into being in 1921, when ACA and the Southern Association of College Women formally merged.  

Mrs. Jessie Daniel Ames was one of the ten Charter members and the first President of the Georgetown Branch of the American Association of University Women which was founded 1923.  This Branch was one of the ten Charter branches of the Texas Division when the State Division was organized in 1926.  The Georgetown Branch is listed as a “Founder” in the Founder’s Book at National Headquarters in Washington, D.C.  
Jessie Daniel Ames was born in Anderson County, Texas, November 2, 1883.  She received her B.A. degree in 1902 from Southwestern University in Georgetown, taking additional work at the University of Texas.  Mrs. Ames was Vice-President of the Georgetown Telephone Company, Treasurer of the Texas Equal Suffrage Association, President of the Texas League of Women Voters, Executive Director of Interracial Commission, Director of Women’s Work, a member of the Commission on Interracial Cooperation for the South, and Director of the Association of Southern Women for the Prevention of Lynching.  She was the author of Southern Women Look at Lynching, 1937, With Quietness They Work, 1938, Editorial Treatment of Lynching, 1938, and Toward Lynchless America, 1940.  

Jessie Daniel Ames devoted thirty years of her life to a rigorous and demanding crusade for racial and sexual liberty and equality in a time when neither of those topics was accepted by the society in which she lived.  She was a pioneer who laid the groundwork for the civil rights and women’s rights movements in the 1960’s and 1970’s.  

Georgetown is the home of Southwestern University, the oldest institution of higher learning in Texas.  It was due to the efforts of the women faculty members and graduates of Southwestern that AAUW was first organized.  Not without a struggle, though.  In 1923, when Ms. Ames applied for a chapter of AAUW for the graduates and ex-students of Southwestern, the National organization refused to consent to her application.  Evidently, Dr. Barcus, the President of Southwestern University at that time had some misgivings about the requirements and standards a college needed to meet in order to comply with AAUW guidelines.  These guidelines dealt entirely with the status of women students and faculty members.  According to Mrs. Ames letter, “The members of the Faculty listened quite nicely but Dr. Barcus was not even courteous.  He had never heard of the AAUW and its standards had no relevance to the quality of education, etc. etc.”  However, National AAUW agreed to allow the members to have an associate chapter until full standing was accomplished.  This was done in time, and full membership was granted to all members once SU raised its standards and met the qualifications.  It was through Mrs. Ames’ work that Southwestern was placed on the approved list of colleges and universities whose graduates were eligible for membership in the American Association of University Women.
Minutes of the Branch are available from 1947 to the present time.  The early history was gained from interviews and information from Southwestern University by Mrs. Mildred Gervasi (now deceased).  Some of the charter members of the Georgetown Branch were Mrs. Ruth Morgan Ferguson, Dean Emerita, Southwestern University, Miss Mattie Loventhall, Mrs. Jessie Daniel Ames, Miss Velma Tisdale, and Mrs. E. P. Miles

According to Mrs. Earl Wyatt, Division Historian, in “Reflect on Our Heritage”, 1965, the Georgetown Branch helped to pay off the final debt of the old 1634 “I” Street Building, Washington, D.C.  Branch records show that in 1957, members participated in the fund drive for the National Headquarter’s Building with 100% payment of their quota.  

Except for a few years during the depression, the Georgetown Branch has been participating in education and civic activities for seventy-two (72) years.  The Branch was disbanded in 1934, but 

reorganized in 1944.  Mrs. Horace Blank, former Vice President in charge of program development at the Division level, was very active in reorganizing the branch after the depression years.

There has been close adherence to program suggestions from the Washington office.  Programs developed from these ideas have been of great value in helping women to continue their educational growth.  In 1947, the membership encouraged the study of Latin in high school and contacted the school board to find out if such a course could be offered.  Interest in international affairs seemed to be high after World War II but tended to decline in the ‘50’s to be replaced with more “lady type things” as reflected in Betty Freidan’s book, The Feminine Mystique.
In 1958 and 1959 the National Children’s Theater Association Plays were sponsored by AAUW as a cultural contribution to the community as well as a fund raising project.  Schools in the Williamson County were contacted and children were brought to the campus of Southwestern by members to see “live theatre”.  Again in the years 1971-1974, the branch cooperated with Southwestern to sponsor a children’s theatre program.  The “Mask and Wig” drama organization produced the plays and the Branch did the outside work by bringing the children to see the productions. This project was of service in three different ways:  children experienced live theatre (many for the first time), a concept of college was introduced, and money for scholarships was raised.

It is interesting to note that some of the issues considered important in the 50’s were still important toward the end of the 70’s.  Topics given consideration and study were:  Needs of the Elderly, Mental Health, Individual Liberties, and Segregation and Discrimination.  Questions on legislation have been given attention over the years and noted persons in State positions have been speakers.  In October 1973, a representative from the State Department of Public Welfare discussed the needs of abused and neglected children in Williamson County.  With AAUW as leader, interested groups in Williamson County were invited to petition the Commissioners’ Court to request the appointment of a child welfare board of knowledgeable people and funding to meet the needs of abused and neglected children.  Finally in the spring of 1974, all recommendations were accepted by the Court.  A Board was appointed, funds allocated and an agreement signed to enter into contract with the State Department of Public Welfare in order that medical expenses for needy children could be paid by the state.  This is an example of the way in which AAUW members used their knowledge to take the lead in a needed program.  In 1975, members supported the sponsorship of the Travis County Medical Society Blood Bank which continued for many years.
Following the purpose of AAUW, much has been done by the Branch in the fields of civic and social services.  Studies were made and support given to such endeavors as the sheltered workshop, the American Cancer Society, the drug crisis, child traffic safety, foster parents, peace and world hunger, teenage pregnancy, and assault and abuse of women and children.  The Williamson County Public Library has had the continuing support of the organization.  

Political issues have been on the minds of the Branch members.  The equal rights for women, voter registration, qualified bondsmen, candidate appraisal, the United Nations, international affairs and national security found their places on various programs.  The Board has sponsored several candidate forums for political offices.  
As equality gained through education is one of the main premises of AAUW, the membership in the past years have concentrated their fundraising for scholarships to be awarded to a graduating senior from Georgetown High School as well as donations to the National Education Fund.  This has been accomplished through book sales, theatre programs at the Palace Theatre, garage sales and member donations.  The members have also supported a foster family in Jarrell through Christmas gifts.  The Branch also sponsors and funds member participation during Legislative Day at the State Capitol.  The issue of concern this year was the demise of and lack of funding for public education.
Elizabeth Lundblad (now deceased) was recognized as an Honorary Life Member in 2004.  Her interview was published in University Women Texas.  She had been an AAUW member for sixty-one years.  Ms. Lundblad was President of Georgetown AAUW in the 1940’s and again in the 1990’s.  She saw many changes in women’s lives during her lifetime – women’s right to vote, women’s access to higher education, and the right of choice.  She watched women become more independent, “more of a whole person”.  Doesn’t that statement reflect the goals of AAUW for all women?  Elizabeth Lundblad was a remarkable woman of her time and of our time.  She is just one example of the many women of AAUW.  
At this writing, the Georgetown Branch of AAUW has twenty-six (26) members.  The elected officers for 2004 – 2005 are:


President



Faith Carlson Unger


Vice President, Programs

Shirley Villoni


Vice President, Membership

Mary K. Pierson


Treasurer



Jane Rogers


Secretary



Judy Ryan
